
AGENDA WITH COMMENTARY 
 

GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
802 EAST VILAS 

GUTHRIE, OKLAHOMA 
 

MONDAY 
OCTOBER 12, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Establish a Quorum 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
5. Presentation of Certified and Support Employee of the Month 
 
6. Comments to the Board by: 
 A. Citizens registered to speak to the Board 
 B. Board Members  
  
7. Superintendent’s Reports 
 
8. Presentation by TransPar Group 
  
9. Consent Agenda…………………………………………………………...….Pages 5-137 
 All of the following items, those items of a routine nature normally approved at 
           Board meetings, will be approved by one vote unless any Board member desires to 
           have a separate vote on any or all of these items.  The Consent Agenda consists of the 
           discussion, consideration and action on the following items: 
  
 A.   Minutes of regular meeting held on September 14, 2015 
 
 B. Treasurer’s Report 
 

C. New Activity Fund Account request by Guthrie High School 
 
 D. Activity Fund Fundraisers as per attached list 
 
 E. Activity Fund Transfers as per attached list 
 

1



 F. Fuel bid as recommended by bid committee 
 
 G. Encumbrances for General Fund #’s 592-694, Building Fund #’s 65-80, 

 Child Nutrition Fund #’s 23-24, Bond Fund #2, and Casualty and Flood 
Insurance Recovery Fund #2, and listed change orders and Activity Fund 
Reports 

 
H. Out-of-State Trip Requests: 
      Tina Wilkerson, Tara Barker and Fifi Canning-NSTA Conference-Kansas 

          City, MO-December 3-5, 2015 
      
I. Contracts/Agreements under $10,000 
 1.   Agreement with Trak-1 Technology for background checks for                  

      prospective employees and volunteers for 2015-2016 
 
       Commentary: 
       This is our annual renewal agreement with Trak-1 for background checks.       

      This is basically our backup service.  All employees must go through an OSBI 
      fingerprint background check.  The Trak-1 service is used when the OSBI        
      report has not been received or has been delayed but is forthcoming.  Trak-1    
      will verify any convictions that would be attributed to that individual.  The      
      cost for this service for 2014-2015 was approximately $930.00.  Doug Ogle    
      will answer any questions. 

 
       RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
       The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 

  2.   Agreement with Ms. Brenda Nivens to provide tutoring for Title I             
                              students attending Saint Mary’s Catholic School in Guthrie for 2015-        
                              2016 
    
        Commentary: 
        Guthrie Public Schools is required to serve as the Lead Educational Agency     
                              of federal funds for Saint Mary’s Catholic School per federal guidelines,          
                              and, therefore, all contracts paid with federal funds must be submitted and       
                              reviewed by the Board.  Ms. Nivens will be paid with Title I funds at a             
                              rate of $20.00 per hour not to exceed $8,653.16 budgeted for these services.    
                              Carmen Walters will answer any questions. 
 
        RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
        The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
  3.   Agreement with NORTHchurch, Inc. for facility use for 2015-2016 
 
        Commentary: 
                              Guthrie Public Schools has agreed to allow use of Guthrie Upper Elementary  
                              School as a host site for NORTHchurch, Inc.  The specifics of the lease are      
                              included in your board packet.  Rental charges are based upon the Board          

2



                              approved Facilities Schedule.  This agreement is for 2015-2016.  Dr.               
                              Simpson will answer any questions. 
 
        RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
        The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
  4.   Agreement with Oklahoma City Community College for Guthrie Public   
                              Schools to arrange clinical rotation experiences for students attending      
                              OCCC for 2015-2016 
 
        Commentary: 
        Guthrie Public Schools has agreed to be a host site for students attending         
                              the Speech Pathologist Program at OCCC.  These students will work                
                              side by side with the current Speech Pathologists in our District for 2015-        
                              2016.  There is no cost for this program.   Eldona Woodruff will answer any 
                              questions. 
 
        RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
        The Superintendent recommends approval. 

 
10. Business Agenda: 
 A. Discussion and possible action regarding the 2015-2016 School Budget 
                                                                                                                                   Pages 138-170 
         
  Commentary: 
  A copy of the budget is included in your packet.  Mr. Dennis Schulz will make a 

presentation to the Board.  Dennis Schulz will answer any questions. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
  
11.  Proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing employment of personnel, 
  FMLA requests, resignation/separation from employment and transfer of position 
  requests all as set out on the Personnel Reports, and discussion of extra-duty 

assignments for 2015-2016, disclosure of which information would violate the 
confidentiality requirements of state and/or federal law all pursuant to 25 OKLA. 
STAT. Section 307 (B) 1, and 7 

  A.   Vote to go into executive session 
  B.   Acknowledge Board’s return to open session 
  C.   Statement of minutes of executive session 
 
12. Vote on action as set out on the Personnel Reports……………………………Page 171 
 
13. Action upon recommendation of extra-duty assignments as listed for 2015-2016 
                Page 172 
 
14. Recommendation, consideration and action to accept any resignations offered since 
            the posting of the agenda 
 

3



15. Discussion and possible action on new business not known about or could not have 
been reasonably foreseen at the time of the agenda posting 

 
16. Adjourn 
 
 
      Dr. Mike Simpson 
      Superintendent 
 
jf 
 
Posted by:   
 
Date:                Time:  
 
Place:    

4



 
GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BOARD MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR 
MEETING HELD AT 7:00 P.M. IN THE OFFICE OF THE BOARD, 802 EAST VILAS, GUTHRIE, 
OKLAHOMA ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 
 
 
Board Members Present: Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Gail Davis, Janna 

Pierson, Travis Sallee, Tina Smedley, Sharon 
Watts and Terry Pennington 

 
District Level School Officials Present:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Superintendent 
  Dennis Schulz, Ass’t Superintendent 
  Doug Ogle, Executive Director of 
   Personnel/Secondary Ed 
  Carmen Walters, Executive Director of 
   Federal Programs/Elementary Ed 
  Eldona Woodruff, Director of Special Education 
  Jerry Gammill, Director of Facilities 
  Dee Benson, Director of Technology 
  Steve Cordell, Director of Transportation 
  Jean Watts, Deputy Minutes Clerk 
   
   
1. The meeting was called to order by President Pennington. 
 
2. Members Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Gail Davis, Janna Pierson, Travis Sallee, Tina Smedley, 

Sharon Watts and Terry Pennington were present for roll call. 
 
3. A quorum was established. 
 
4. President Pennington asked everyone present to stand and join him in the Pledge of 
 Allegiance. 
 
5. President Pennington called for presentation of Certified and Support Employee of the 
 Month. 
 

Mr. Doug Ogle, Executive Director of Personnel and Secondary Education, announced the 
award winners for August: Ms. Sonya Arnold, Occupational Therapist Assistant for GPS, as 
certified employee of the month and Mrs. Vicki Biggs, GPS Encumbrance Clerk, as support 
employee of the month.  Nomination letters were read by the staff member who submitted 
the nominations:  Mrs. Charity McPeek, Secretary at GHS, for Ms. Sonya Arnold and Mr. 
Dennis Schulz, Assistant Superintendent, for Mrs. Vicki Biggs.  

5



 
 Mr. Ogle presented the award winners a plaque and a $25.00 Sonic Gift Card donated by 
 the Guthrie Lions Club. 
 
6A. President Pennington asked the Superintendent if there were any citizens registered to speak 

to the Board. 
       
 Superintendent Simpson stated there were no citizens registered to speak to the Board. 
 
6B. President Pennington called for any comments to the Board by Board members.   
 

President Pennington attended the recent Logan County Free Fair where he saw many of 
our Ag students, parents, and volunteers.  He was very thankful for the help received from 
the OSU Extension Office and the many volunteers that made the event successful.  He 
encouraged everyone to get out and support these students.  He also wanted to thank the 
Principals and P.E. Educators for helping the Kiwanis Club pass out information for the 
annual Punt, Pass and Kick event that has been held every year for the last 10 years. 

 
7. President Pennington called for the Superintendent’s Reports. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson reported on the following:  
  

He believes we have experienced the smoothest start to the school year in the 4 years he has 
been in Guthrie.  We have entered the year with a renewed enthusiasm and positive attitude 
about what we are trying to do and how we are trying to change children’s lives.  He 
appreciates the staff and faculty for what they have done as we’ve started the school year. 
 
Guthrie High School raised $8072.00 during Pink Week for the family of Maria Huskey who 
recently lost her battle with cancer.  She has two sisters who are currently students in 
Guthrie Public Schools.  The money will be used to help with incurred medical expenses and 
funeral costs.  He received a call today from her grandmother thanking us for all of the 
efforts of our students and staff. 
 
He recently visited with our new Chamber of Commerce CEO, Gregory Coleman, regarding 
forming partnerships between chamber members and different school sites.  This is in the 
formulation stage and the hopes are to seek businesses to adopt schools for financial and 
moral support and possibly some mentorship as well.  In doing this, they can tailor it to each 
school site as the needs are different at each site. 
 
Last Friday, our Bluejay football team defeated 6A Ponca City with a score of 28-19 in front 
of a very large home crowd.  They are currently 1-1 and will travel to Sand Springs to play 
the final non-district game of the season this Friday at 7:00 p.m.  The Lady Jays Softball 
Team is having a great year as they are 15-9. They will host Carl Albert on Tuesday at 4:30 
p.m. as they prepare for the upcoming playoffs.   
 
Bancfirst is providing scholarships for students to visit the Mabee-Gerrer Museum of Art at 
St. Gregory’s University in Shawnee.  The scholarships include the cost of transportation. 
We are working with Bancfirst to get more details out to our staff so we can utilize this 
opportunity to enhance learning opportunities for our students. 

6



 
The student count is very similar to where we were at this time last year.  A caveat to that is 
we have 111 more students at this time than what we ended with last year.   That says that 
we lost those students last year and they are back with us now so our job is to retain them.  
That is going to be our charge and he will follow up with that topic at our Ad Council 
meeting on Tuesday. 

 
8. President Pennington called for the presentation on ACT High School to College Success 

Report for 2014-2015. 
 
 Mr. Doug Ogle, Executive Director of Personnel and Secondary Education reported on last 

fiscal year’s High School ACT results.  He began by acknowledging the great job done by 
Mr. LeGrande, Guthrie High School Principal, and his staff in preparing the students for 
the ACT.  The state average is going down but our average is going up.  There were 137 
students from Guthrie that took the ACT last year.  We are encouraging more students to 
take this exam and are currently looking at ways to provide funding for this.   

 
 In comparing the 2014-2015 scores to those from 2013-2014, our scores in all tested subjects, 

as well as the composite scores, increased while the state scores either decreased or stayed 
the same.  Our Math scores are actually higher than the state average.  One thing we are 
working on at GHS is making sure Math teachers all have the same plan time so they can 
plan together.  We are also encouraging our kids to get more involved in Science.  We have a 
new lab at GJHS allowing each team to do one lab per week.  We expect our Science test 
numbers to climb. 

 
 Dr. Simpson stated he was concerned that a side effect of an increased amount of students 

taking this test would be a lower test average.  The students that have the greatest chance to 
be college bound are going to take the ACT regardless.  As you reach farther out, you get 
more students on the fringe of being college ready.  We have increased our numbers and 
increased our average and he doesn’t take that lightly. 

 
 Mr. LeGrande stated that we have increased the amount of Science classes offered this year 

at GHS including Robotics, a 2-hour A/P Biology Class, an A/P Environmental Science 
Class, this is our second year to offer Physics, and the third year to offer a Chemistry II 
Class in which we have 2 sections of this year.  This is the first year in at least five years 
we’ve had an average composite score above 20.  

 
9. President Pennington called for action on the Consent Agenda. 
 
 Member Sallee requested Item 9B be removed from the Consent Agenda for consideration. 
 
 A motion was made by Sallee and seconded by Pierson to approve the Consent Agenda 

excluding item 9B. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to approve item 9B, minutes 

of special meeting held on August 17, 2015. 
 

7



 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 1 abstention-Member Sallee abstaining. 
 
10A. President Pennington called for discussion, consideration and vote to grant the request of 

Robbins Commercial Roofing to withdraw its bid for roof replacement at Central 
Elementary, Fogarty Elementary and Guthrie Upper Elementary School and to exonerate 
the bidder and its surety from liability under the bid bond. 

 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Smedley to grant the request of Robbins 

Commercial Roofing to withdraw its bid for roof replacement at Central Elementary, 
Fogarty Elementary and Guthrie Upper Elementary School and to exonerate the bidder and 
its surety from liability under the bid bond. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10B. President Pennington called for discussion, consideration and vote to grant the request of 

Hi-Tech Systems, Inc. to withdraw its bid for roof replacement at Central Elementary, 
Fogarty Elementary and Guthrie Upper Elementary School and to exonerate the bidder and 
its surety from liability under the bid bond. 

 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Davis to grant the request of Hi-Tech 

Systems, Inc. to withdraw its bid for roof replacement at Central Elementary, Fogarty 
Elementary and Guthrie Upper Elementary School and to exonerate the bidder and its 
surety from liability under the bid bond. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10C. President Pennington called for discussion, consideration and vote to award the contract for 

roof replacement at Central Elementary, Fogarty Elementary and Guthrie Upper 
Elementary School to Graco Roofing as the lowest possible bidder for the contract sum of 
$780,147. 

 
 Discussion followed. 
 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Watts to award the contract for roof 

replacement at Central Elementary, Fogarty Elementary and Guthrie Upper Elementary 
School to Graco Roofing as the lowest possible bidder for the contract sum of $780,147. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10D. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon Gifted and 

Talented Committee for 2015-2016. 
 
 Discussion followed. 
 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Smedley to approve the Gifted and Talented 

Committee for 2015-2016.   
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

8



10E. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon the 
Professional Development Committee for 2015-2016. 

 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to approve the 

Professional Development Committee for 2015-2016. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10F. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon contract 

with The Stacy Group for architectural services for 2015-2016. 
 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Pierson to approve contract with The Stacy 

Group for architectural services for 2015-2016. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10G. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon Guthrie Jr. 

High Health Fair for 7th grade students October 20th and 22nd, 2015. 
 
 A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Smedley to approve Guthrie Jr. High Health 

Fair for 7th grade students October 20th and 22nd, 2015. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10H. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon 

reconvening English Club at Guthrie High School to include a paid sponsor. 
 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to approve reconvening 

English Club at Guthrie High School to include a paid sponsor. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10I. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon 

Memorandum of Understanding between Meridian Technology Center and Guthrie Public 
Schools for supplemental funding for Guthrie Middle School Gateway to Technology 
Programs for 8th grade students for 2015-2016. 

 
 Discussion followed. 
 
 A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Smedley to approve the Memorandum of 

Understanding between Meridian Technology Center and Guthrie Public Schools for 
supplemental funding for Guthrie Middle School Gateway to Technology Programs for 8th 
grade students for 2015-2016. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10J. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon 2015-2016 

STEM Academy:Pre-Engineering and Biomedical Sciences Joint Program Agreement with 
Meridian Technology Center. 

9



 Discussion followed. 
 
 A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Sallee to approve the 2015-2016 STEM 

Academy:Pre-Engineering and Biomedical Sciences Joint Program Agreement with 
Meridian Technology Center. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10K. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action to approve the 

transcription of math and science credit options taught at Meridian Technology Center. 
 
 A motion was made by Sallee and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to approve the transcription 

of math and science credit options taught at Meridian Technology Center. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10L. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action upon the 2015-

2016 Estimate of Needs as prepared by Putnam & Company, PLLC and 2014-2015 Financial 
Statement and the authority to publish the same. 

 
 A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Pierson to approve the 2015-2016 Estimate of 

Needs as prepared by Putnam & Company, PLLC and 2014-2015 Financial Statement and 
the authority to publish the same. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
11. President Pennington called for proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing 
 employment of personnel, FMLA requests, resignation/separation from employment and 

transfer of position requests all as set out on the Personnel Reports, discussion of extra-duty 
assignments as listed for 2015-2016 and Superintendent’s contract, disclosure of which 
information would violate the confidentiality requirements of state and/or federal law all 
pursuant to 25 OKLA. STAT. Section 307 (B) 1 and 7. 

 
11A. A motion was made by Bennett-Johnson and seconded by Watts to go into executive session. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays.  Executive session began at 7:35 p.m. 
 
11B. President Pennington acknowledged the Board’s return to open session at 8:07 p.m. 
 
11C. President Pennington stated that in executive session only those items listed in Agenda 
 Item 11 were discussed and no votes were taken. 
 
12. President Pennington called for a vote on action as set out on the Personnel Reports. 
 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Sallee to approve action as set out on the 

Personnel Reports. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

10



13. President Pennington called for action upon recommendation of extra-duty assignments as 
listed for 2015-2016. 

 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Smedley to approve extra-duty assignments 

as listed for 2015-2016. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
14. President Pennington called for recommendation, consideration and action to accept any 

resignations offered since the posting of the agenda. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated we received the resignation of Van Barker, 8th Grade Science 

Teacher at Guthrie Jr. High School.   
 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Watts to accept the resignation of Van 

Barker, 8th Grade Science Teacher at Guthrie Jr. High School. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
15. President Pennington called for discussion and possible action on new business not known 
 about or could not have been reasonably foreseen at the time of the agenda posting. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated there was no new business. 
 
16. A motion was made by Sallee and seconded by Smedley to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
   
Jana Frey, Minutes Clerk 
 
 
 
     
Terry Pennington, Board President   

 
 

11



    
 
    TREASURER’S REPORT 

          SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 
   

 
   BANK BALANCES                        
        

FARMERS & MERCHANTS  

   General Fund       $     3,210,564.78  

Building Fund                374,260.41                                            
      Sinking Fund                    84,226.00                               
      ILR Fund                          96,300.04                   
      G&E Fund                               73.69                                      
      Child Nutrition Fund     143,415.71                               
       Activity Fund                 676,009.84                   
      School Age-Care Fund     75,619.14 
   Bond Fund        1,923,532.43        
                                                  
                            

TOTAL                              $  6,584,002.04      
         

                                                     
                         
RECEIPTS__________________________________________________________                                                     
                                                                                           
GENERAL FUND:                                                   SINKING FUND:               
Logan County   $       39,506.03                           Logan County                      
State of Oklahoma       1,029,787.17 
Okla. Tax Comm.          204,416.45 
School Land Earn.            29,648.87   CHILD NUTRITION FUND: 
R.O.T.C.     5,163.47                                 $89,365.12 
Misc Receipts                  16,739.31    
General Acct. Int.               1,908.87   INS.LOSS RECOVERY FUND       
                           $34,080.99 
TOTAL                    $ 1,327,170.17                
              
                                                        
BUILDING FUND                 BOND FUND            $800.98 
Logan County          $          2,510.12 
Bldg. for Champs                      20.00                    
                                                              
TOTAL                    $         2,530.12                    
 
 

12



  
 
 
 WARRANTS PAID                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                          
GENERAL FUND:                              GIFTS & ENDOWMENTS FUND:         
2014-2015           $     22,033.59                 
2015-2016           $1,726,043.40 
               

        INS. LOSS RECOVERY FUND: 
           
BUILDING FUND:     2015-2016   $4,524.14   
2014-2015              $       0.00   
2015-2016            $     25,701.15           
 
 
CHILD NUTRITION FUND:       BOND FUND: 
2014-2015            $       1,387.58   2015-2016          $60,167.18 
2015-2016              $   114,107.08    
                                         
             
                   
 
SCHOLARSHIPS: 

 
Smithson - BancFirst  
   C.D.  $      745.27          
Keri Fisher – F&M Bank 
    Balance  $   4,956.78 
Paula Bearden – F&M Bank 
    Balance              $  6,262.44 
Randy Biggs  - F&M Bank 
    Balance           $  1,711.62 
Original 89ers – F&M Bank 
    C.D.  $   7,152.61 
 
 
Total Monies in BancFirst $             745.27       Pledged  $     250,000.00 FDIC 
Total Monies in F&M Bank $  6,604,085.49        Pledged  $    8,696,000.00 
`                          $    250,000.00 FDIC 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this 12th day of October, 2015, by 
and between INDEPEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 OF LOGAN COUNTY, 
OKLAHOMA (the “Lessor”) and NORTHchurch, Inc. (the “Lessee”). 
 
RECITALS: 
 
 Lessor is the owner of the Guthrie Upper Elementary School gymnasium and facilities 
located at 1615 N. Walnut, Guthrie, Oklahoma (the “Facilities”).  Lessee desires to lease a 
portion of the Facilities for church meetings. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 
contained and intending to be legally bound, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES.  In consideration of the rentals and upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter stated, Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from 
Lessor, the following areas of the School on each Sunday for the duration and at the rates set 
forth below:    

September 20-January 10, 4:30 to 7:30 (3 hours) 
 
Gymnasium   $100 
Choir Room   $  45 
Custodian   $  45 
Total    $190 
 
January 17-June 26, 7:30 to noon (4.5 hours) 
 
Gymnasium   $152.50 
Choir Room   $  67.50 
Custodian   $  67.50 
Total    $287.50 
 

(the “Leased Premises”). 
 

2. TERM.  The term (“Term”) of this Agreement is for a period from October 18, 
2015, to June 30, 2015, unless this Agreement is terminated at an earlier date, as stated herein. 

 
3. RENTAL.  For the use and possession of the Leased Premises during the Term, 

Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the rental charges set forth above, one month in advance, 
commencing October 12, 2015.  Lessee will be deemed to have used the Leased Premises on 
each Sunday unless Lessee gives Lessor at least two (2) weeks’ advance notice of Lessee’s 
intended non-use on any reserved Sunday.  If the notice is properly given, Lessee’s rental for the 
applicable month will be reduced by a pro-rated amount.  Otherwise, Lessee will be charged for 
the rental as if the Leased Premises were used.  The monthly rental payment is due on the first 

123



(1st) day of each month for all scheduled uses during that month and will be delinquent if the full 
monthly rental is not received by Lessor on or before the tenth (10th) day of each month.  In the 
event any rental payment is not made by the tenth (10th) day of the month, Lessor shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement and Lessee's right to use and occupy the Leased Premises 
without any further notice or demand, statutory or otherwise, all of which are waived by Lessee.  
All rentals shall be paid in advance without deduction or offset.  Lessor shall be entitled to a "late 
charge" of five percent (5%) of the amount of any rental installment which is not paid on or 
before the delinquent date as a condition to reinstatement of this Agreement, which reinstatement 
shall be at Lessor's sole option.  If Lessor elects to terminate this Agreement, the unpaid rental 
shall bear interest as herein provided and the "late charge" shall not be applicable.  In the event 
any rental is paid by a check which is returned for any reason, Lessor shall have the right, by 
written notice to Lessee, to require that future rental installments be paid by cashier's check. 

 
4. USE.  The Leased Premises will be used by Lessee for religious meetings and 

services and for no other purpose.  Lessee agrees that its use of the Leased Premises will be full 
and strict compliance with the requirements of applicable state, municipal and federal laws, rules 
and regulations.  In the event Lessor determines that Lessee is not complying with the provisions 
of this Agreement concerning the nature and character of its use, Lessor shall give Lessee written 
notice.  If Lessee fails to correct deficiencies in the operation within ten (10) days after receipt of 
Lessor's notice, Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.  If Lessee violates any 
applicable provision of any state, municipal or federal law, rule or regulation governing its use of 
the Leased Premises, Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately and 
without notice to Lessee. 

 
5. CODE COMPLIANCE.  Lessee shall not use the Leased Premises in any manner 

which would constitute a change in use or occupancy, as that term is defined in the current 
edition of the International Building Code (the “Code”).  In the event Lessee is required to have a 
license or a Certificate of Occupancy from any state or local regulatory agency as a condition to 
Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Leased Premises, the cancellation, suspension, revocation or 
surrender of the license or the failure to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy shall constitute a basis 
for immediate termination of this Agreement by the Lessor. 

 
6. HOURS.  The Leased Premises will be used during the hours set forth in Section 

1, above.  Hours of use may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. 
 
7. UTILITIES AND CUSTODIAL SERVICES.  The Lessor agrees to provide the 

following services to the Leased Premises:   water, heat, air conditioning (but only if the Leased 
Premises are air conditioned); sewer and electric.  Custodial services will be provided by Lessor 
at the rates set forth in Section 1, above. 

 
8. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor for the cost of 

any services provided by Lessor in addition to those described above.  Lessor will invoice Lessee 
for the cost of any additional services, which shall be paid by Lessee as additional rent due and 
payable with the next regularly scheduled payment of rental in accordance with the provisions of 
paragraph 3 above. 

 

124



9. IMPROVEMENTS TO LEASED PREMISES.  Lessor shall have no obligation to 
make any improvements or to remodel, repair, alter, decorate, paint or perform any other work of 
any nature to make the Leased Premises ready for Lessee’s use.  Lessee has inspected the Leased 
Premises and accepts the same in its present condition. 

 
10. ACCESS TO OTHER AREAS OF SCHOOL BUILDING AND GROUNDS.  

Lessee shall have no right of access to, or use of, other areas of the building or the grounds, 
except halls and restrooms. 

 
11. INDEMNITY.  Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold Lessor harmless of and from 

all claims, demands, actions and proceedings asserted against Lessor arising out of Lessee's use 
of the Leased Premises, except to the extent that such claims, demands, actions and proceedings 
are the result of the negligence or wrongful act of the Lessor or its agents or employees.  This 
indemnity shall include defense costs and attorney's fees except to the extent Lessor and its 
employees are responsible for any loss. 

 
12. NOTICES.  Any notices required or contemplated under this Agreement shall be 

addressed to the parties as follows: 
 
 If to Lessor: 
 

Mr. Dennis Schulz, Assistant Superintendent 
Guthrie Public Schools 
802 East Vilas 
Guthrie, OK 73044 
 

 If to Lessee: 
 
 Mr. Clint Smith, Executive Director of Ministry 
 NORTHchurch, Inc. 
 PO Box 3307 
 Edmond, OK  73083-3307 
 
All notices shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Notices mailed in accordance 
with the foregoing shall be deemed to have been delivered five (5) days after deposit in the U.S. 
Mail at Guthrie, Oklahoma. 
 

13. ALTERATION OF LEASED PREMISES.  Lessee shall have no right to make 
any alterations to the Leased Premises unless prior written approval for the alterations is obtained 
from Lessor.  All approved alterations shall be made at the expense of Lessee. 

 
14. RISK OF LOSS.  Lessor shall have no responsibility for any loss of, damage to, 

destruction or disappearance of any of Lessee's property in the Leased Premises.  Lessee assumes 
the entire risk of the foregoing.  Lessee understands that Lessor does not, and will not, maintain 
any casualty or other insurance on Lessee's property.  Lessee waives any right of subrogation on 

125



behalf of its insurance carrier against Lessor for any loss of, damage to, destruction or 
disappearance of Lessee's property in the Leased Premises. 

 
15. DESTRUCTION OF SCHOOL BUILDING.  In the event the School building is 

damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty to the extent that the continued operation of the 
Leased Premises is not practical, either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and 
the rental shall be paid to the date of termination. 

 
16. LESSEE’S DEFAULT.  The following shall constitute events of default on the 

part of Lessee: 
 

a. failure to pay the monthly rental by the tenth (10th) of the month; 
 
b. operating the Leased Premises in a manner contrary to any law, ordinance or 

regulation; or 
 
c. violation or non-performance of any other obligation of Lessee under this 

Agreement which is not corrected by Lessee within a reasonable time after 
Lessee’s receipt of written notice from Lessor, except that written notice shall not 
be required for repeated violations or non-performance of the same nature. 

 
Upon the occurrence of an uncorrected event of default, Lessor shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement and Lessee’s rights hereunder, including the right to occupy the Leased 
Premises, without notice or demand, statutory or otherwise, all of which are waived by Lessee. 

 
If Lessor elects to terminate this Agreement because of an uncorrected event of default, 

Lessee shall be liable to Lessor for: 
 
d. all past due and unpaid rentals, plus interest from the due date(s) at the rate of 

18% per annum; plus 
 
e. an amount equal to the present worth of the reasonable rental value of the Leased 

Premises from the date of Lessee’s last rental payment to the normal expiration of 
the Agreement term, with no duty to mitigate damages; and 

 
f. Lessor’s costs and expenses, including attorney fees, in recovering possession of 

the Leased Premises and reducing the amounts under subsections d. and e. to 
judgment. 

 
17. WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS.  Lessor makes and has made no 

warranties or representations concerning the Leased Premises, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, its suitability or fitness for any use and the condition or state of 
repair of the facilities serving the Leased Premises, including structural elements, plumbing, 
heating, ventilation, electrical, mechanical and systems controls.  Lessee has inspected the 
Leased Premises and accepts the Leased Premises in "as is" condition. 

 

126



18. LIABILITY INSURANCE.  During the term of this Agreement, Lessee shall 
maintain and pay for public liability and property damage insurance specifically related to the 
Leased Premises and issued by companies authorized to do business in the State of Oklahoma, 
naming Lessor as a co-insured, and providing coverage in amounts not less than the amounts 
required to insure District's liability under the Oklahoma Governmental Tort Claims Act, 
including any amendments thereto subsequent to the date of this Agreement.  Copies of the 
certificates of insurance shall be furnished to Lessor prior to the commencement of the 
Agreement term and replacement certificates shall be furnished from time to time during the 
Agreement term to evidence that liability insurance is in force at all times.  All insurance 
certificates issued under this section shall provide for at least ten (10) days' prior written notice 
to Lessor before cancellation of the coverage for any reason, including non-payment of the 
premium. 

 
19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE.  Lessee shall not assign this Agreement or 

any interest herein or sublease all or any part of the Leased Premises without the prior written 
consent of Lessor. 

 
20. WAIVER.  The failure of either party to seek redress against the other for 

violation of, or to insist upon strict performance of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, 
will not constitute a waiver of the right to seek redress for any subsequent violation of the terms 
and provisions, or of any right to insist on strict performance. 

 
21. GOVERNING LAW.  This instrument is entered into in Oklahoma and the law of 

Oklahoma shall govern the construction of this instrument. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this instrument or its application to any 

party, person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this instrument, or the application of the provision to the party, person or circumstances other 
than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and each provision of 
this instrument shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
23. MISCELLANEOUS.  This instrument represents the entire understanding 

between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof and may be modified only by the 
mutual written agreement of the parties.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and 
their respective successors and assigns, except that Lessee shall not assign this Agreement or 
sublease the Leased Premises.  Time is the essence of the obligations of the parties herein.  
Lessee shall not advertise or represent that Lessee is sponsored by Lessor.  In the event any 
action is brought by either party to enforce this Agreement, or for breach of the terms of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover a reasonable attorney's fee, to be 
fixed by the court, and its other costs. 
 

127



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have signed this Agreement as of the date 
first above written. 
 
Lessor:     INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
      OF LOGAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
      By:        
       President, Board of Education 
 
 
Lessee:     NORTHchurch, Inc. 
 
 
 
      By:        
      Name:        
      Title:        
 

128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



Board of Education Personnel Reports
Employment Request

Replacing
Hrs Per 

Day
Pay 

Grade
First 

Work DayTeaching AssignmentSiteName

Classification Certified

Wilson, Lorrie Junior High Science 8th Gr 09/23/15 6 Van Barker

Replacing
Hrs Per 

Day
Pay 

Grade
First 

Work DayTeaching AssignmentSiteName

Classification Support

Beard, Crystal Cotteral Cafeteria Worker 7.5 Hrs 09/28/15 2 7.5 Suzanne Hubbard

Foshee, Stacy Central Sp Ed Paraprofessional 09/21/15 3 7.5 Ruth Hildreth
Hudson, John High School Paraprofessional ISS 09/21/15 3 7.5 Byron McDonald

Wohldmann, Lawre Maintenance Full Time Maintenance 10/06/15 8 8 Greg Smith

FMLA Request
Support: 1

Certified: 1

Separation of Employment
Classification Support

Name Site Teaching Assignment Reason for Separation Effective Date
Baxter, Latoya High School Cafeteria Worker 6.5 Hrs. 10/5/2015Terminated
Heird, Gabriel Cotteral Custodian 9/14/2015Resigning
Roof, Adam Maintenance Full Time Maintenance 10/5/2015Resigning

10/7/2015

171



172



 
Guthrie Public Schools 

Property Committee Meeting 
October 5, 2015 

5:00 p.m. 

 

Members present: Dr. Mike Simpson, Dennis Schulz, Doug Ogle, Jerry Gammill, Terry 
Pennington, Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Sharon Watts, and Linda Skinner. 

 

 
Mr. Gammill spoke on the following items: 

 Expenditure Reports: 
           -   Summarized the expenses for September   
  -   Outlined new Purchase Orders for September  
   
  
 Completed Projects: 
  -   245 Work-Orders completed in September          
  -   Fire alarm repairs at Cotteral and Fogarty Elementary Schools 
  -   Jr. High auditorium RTU  
  -   High School playground   
     
  
 Projects in Progress: 
  -   Currently have 110 Work-Orders in progress 
  -   Additional Smart Boards to install at Fogarty and High School 
  -   Vo-Ag barns construction 
  -   Vo-Ag hog farm well house rebuild 
  -   High School Gym floor replacement starting Oct. 19th  
  -   High School Gym pipe jacketing near completion 
  -   High School Gym coil replacement 
  -   High School chiller repairs 
  -   FFA shop overhead heater replacement 
 
 New Projects: 
  -   Cotteral Fence repairs 
 
 
 
 Superintendent Discussion: 
  -   Dr. Simpson and Jerry Gammill discussed the progress on the roofing projects.  
 
  
  
  
  

173



Guthrie Public Schools 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2015 
4:00 P.M. 

 
 
In Attendance:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Dennis Schulz, Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters, 
Gail Davis, Tina Smedley, Janna Pierson, and Vicki Biggs. 
 
Mr. Schulz opened the meeting by informing the committee the first pages were routine 
financial reports and if they had questions to call or e-mail him. 
 
Mr. Schulz spoke on the following: 
 
 CD & T Bill Rates 
  Farmers & Merchants Bank is still offering comparable rates on   
  the Schools Demand Deposit Account. 
 
 Operating Budget 
  He summarized the Operating Budget and gave a     
  projection for 2015-16 and explained what could happen 
  for the 2016-17 school year. 
 
 Transportation 
  The committee was given cost comparisons between the   
  costs for the 2013-14 and 2014-15 years. 
 
 Lease Agreement 
  This is an agreement with North Church to use GUES for their   
  Sunday Services. 
 
Dr. Simpson spoke on the following: 
 
 Activity Fund Approvals 
  He explained to the committee that all fundraisers need Board 
  approval.  
 
Ms. Walters spoke on the following: 
  
 Contract with Private School 
  This is a contract with St. Mary’s Catholic schools to provide a tutor  
  for the 2015-16 school year.   

174



Guthrie Public Schools 

Curriculum Committee Meeting 

October 6, 2015 

5:00 P.M. 

 

Members Present: Dr. Mike Simpson, Carmen Walters, Doug Ogle, Eldona Woodruff, Janna Pierson, 

Travis Sallee, Gail Davis and Sheryl Miles 

 

Discussion Items: 

Carmen Walters: 

• Contract for Reading Specialist to provide tutoring for Title I students attending Saint Mary’s 
Catholic School not to exceed $8,653.16 

Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters: 

• Proposed A-F Report Cards 

 

 

175


	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	09-14-15 Board minutes.pdf
	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	BOARD MINUTES

	TREASURERS' REPORT 2015 SEPTEMBER.pdf
	TREASURER’S REPORT
	SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

	Sinking Fund                    84,226.00
	ILR Fund                          96,300.04
	G&E Fund                               73.69
	Child Nutrition Fund     143,415.71
	Activity Fund                 676,009.84
	TOTAL                              $  6,584,002.04
	BUILDING FUND:     2015-2016   $4,524.14
	CHILD NUTRITION FUND:       BOND FUND:
	2015-2016              $   114,107.08
	Total Monies in BancFirst $             745.27       Pledged  $     250,000.00 FDIC




